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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

FORT LAUDERDALE DIVISION 

CASE NO. 

DEAN LUTRARIO, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

CITY OF HOLLYWOOD, 
FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation, 

Defendant. 

__________________________________ 

VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY 
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES 

The Plaintiff, Dean Lutrario, sues the Defendant, City of Hollywood, Florida (City), 

alleging as follows: 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

1. Under City of Hollywood ordinances, a person cannot ask for donations along

certain streets and roadways within the City.  Moreover, people who engage in such conduct—

defined by the City as “soliciting,” “begging,” or “panhandling”—must obtain a permit from the 

City and obey a list of specific restrictions.  Violations are punishable by up to 60 days in jail 

and/or a $500 fine.  Over the last several years, over two hundred people have been arrested or 

cited for violating these ordinances.  

2. However, a person seeking to engage in other forms of speech at the same

locations—such as asking for votes, encouraging people to join a church, or requesting 

signatures on a petition—may do so without fear of arrest.  Because the ordinances single out 
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certain forms of speech, they are content-based and subject to strict scrutiny.  Because they are 

not narrowly tailored to any compelling government interest, nor are they the least restrictive 

means of advancing any government interest, they are unconstitutional restrictions of free 

speech. 

3. Plaintiff Dean Lutrario is an individual of limited means who engages in 

panhandling within the City of Hollywood—an activity protected by the First Amendment.  

Plaintiff has been cited and arrested for panhandling along the public streets in Hollywood.  As 

the result of the City’s adoption and enforcement of the challenged ordinances, Plaintiff has been 

hindered in the exercise of his First Amendment rights, faces a continuing threat of citation and 

arrest for his panhandling activities, and has suffered damages.   

4. Plaintiff brings this action for declaratory and injunctive relief and damages 

pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983 for past and ongoing injury to his rights guaranteed by the First 

Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1343 and the 

Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202. 

6. Venue lies in the Southern District of Florida pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b). The 

parties are located in this District and all of the acts and omissions complained of herein occurred 

and will continue to occur in the Southern District of Florida. 

PARTIES 

7. Plaintiff Dean Lutrario is a resident of Broward County.  He is without permanent 

housing and suffers from a medical disability.  To contribute to his survival, he must request 

donations from others.  
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8. Defendant City of Hollywood is a municipal entity organized under the laws of 

the State of Florida, with the capacity to sue and be sued.   

9. The City of Hollywood Commission sets final policy on the creation and adoption 

of City ordinances. 

10. The City is the legal entity responsible for the police department known as the 

Hollywood Police Department (HPD). 

11. The HPD is authorized to enforce City ordinances. 

12. Sections 122.27, 122.31, and 122.54 of the City Code are official policies of the 

City.   

13. The City is sued for injunctive and declaratory relief and damages on the basis of 

acts of officials, officers, agents and employees of the City and HPD, which were taken pursuant 

to official policy, practice and/or custom. 

14. At all times relevant herein, the officials, officers, agents, and employees of HPD 

and the City were acting under color of state law. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

Solicitation Ordinances Passed on October 21, 1981 

15. On October 21, 1981, the Hollywood City Commission enacted Ordinance No. O-

81-72, which was later codified as §§ 122.25—122.31 of the City Code, captioned “Charitable 

Solicitations.”    

16. Section 122.26 defines “Solicitation” as:  “The request, either directly or 

indirectly, of any donation or contribution for charitable purposes, including but not limited to 

any oral or written request; the sale, offer to sell or attempt to sell any article, service, 

publication, advertisement, subscription, membership or other thing for charitable purposes; or, 
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the making of any announcement to or through the press or other media concerning an appeal, 

drive or campaign to which the public is requested to make a donation. A solicitation shall be 

deemed to have taken place when the request is made, whether or not the person making the 

request receives any donation.” 

17. Under § 122.27(A), “It shall be unlawful for any person to solicit donations for 

charitable purposes within the city without first having obtained a permit therefor; however, the 

provisions of this subchapter shall not apply to any solicitation conducted solely among members 

of charitable organizations by other members thereof.” 

18. Section 122.31, “Solicitation Regulations and Prohibitions,” states:  

“In conducting solicitations, individual solicitors shall be charged with obeying the 

following restrictions on behavior: 

(A)   While engaged in soliciting, each solicitor must carry and display an identification 
card issued by the Director of Licensing, which shall contain the name, address and telephone 
number of the solicitor as well as the name of the person or organization for whose benefit or on 
whose behalf the solicitor is acting. 
 

(B)   No solicitor shall in any way unlawfully obstruct, delay or interfere with the free 
movements of any person against that person's will or seek to coerce, or physically disturb any 
other person. 
 

(C)   No solicitor shall in any way unlawfully obstruct, delay or interfere with vehicular 
traffic within the city. 
 

(D)   No solicitor shall solicit door-to-door at any residence between the hours of 9:00 
p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 
 

(E)   Solicitors shall solicit only during the conditions permitted. 
 
  (F)   Solicitors shall not solicit at nor enter upon any premises within the city where a 
“No Solicitation” sign is posted in accordance with the provisions of this subchapter, unless 
otherwise invited onto the premises for that purpose.” 
 
 
 
 

Case 0:23-cv-60806-XXXX   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 05/02/2023   Page 4 of 15



5 
 

Solicitation Ordinances Passed on June 18, 2014 
 

19. On June 18, 2014, the Hollywood City Commission expanded its regulation of 

charitable solicitation to include roadway solicitations by enacting Ordinance No. O-2014-12, 

which was later codified as §§ 122.50—122.54 of the City Code, captioned “Panhandling, 

Begging or Solicitation.” 

20. Section 122.51 defines “Right of Way Solicitor” as:  

Any person who sells or offers for sale any thing or service of any kind, or who 
seeks any donation of any kind, or who personally hands to or seeks to transmit 
by hand or receive by hand any thing or service of any kind, whether or not 
payment in exchange is required or requested, to any person who operates or 
occupies a motor vehicle of any kind, which vehicle is engaged in travel on or 
within any portion of any of the streets or roadways in the city, whether or not 
such vehicle is temporarily stopped in the travel lanes of the road. The term shall 
not apply to any person who merely holds or displays a sign lawfully permitted to 
be displayed by a person as long as there is no entry by such person or sign into 
any portion of the roadway or its median. 

 
21. Section 122.54 then states that, “It shall be unlawful for any person to act as a 

right-of-way panhandler or solicitor on a prohibited roadway or within 200 feet from the lateral 

curb or boundary line of an intersection located on the prohibited roadways identified in this 

section.” 1 

22. The “prohibited roadways” in Hollywood are State Road 7/US 441, Federal 

Highway, A1A/Ocean Drive, Hollywood Boulevard, Johnson Street, and Sheridan Street. 

 
1 Section 122.51 has its own definition of “soliciting”: “Any request made in person on a street, 
sidewalk or public place, asking for an immediate donation of money or other thing of value, 
including the purchase of an item or service for an amount far exceeding its value, under 
circumstances where a reasonable person would understand that the transaction or purchase is a 
donation. Solicitation shall not include passively standing or sitting with a sign or other 
indication that one is seeking donations without addressing the request to any specific person.”   
“Begging” or “Panhandling” is defined as “the same as soliciting.”  Id.  If prohibited, this would 
be a content-based restriction that would fail strict scrutiny; however, this ordinance does not 
appear to rely on this definition. 
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23. The penalty for a violation of any of the solicitation provisions is set forth in 

Section 122.99 of the City Code, which provides for a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars 

($500.00), a term of imprisonment not to exceed sixty (60) days, or both a fine and 

imprisonment.    

Enforcement of the Ordinances 

24. Sections 122.27, 122.31, and 122.54 of the Hollywood City Code have been 

enforced predominantly against poor and homeless people who were soliciting donations in 

public places.   

25. On August 30, 2018, numerous civil rights organizations notified the City of 

Hollywood in a letter that §§ 122.50—122.54 were unconstitutional restrictions on speech and 

requested that the City cease enforcement, repeal the ordinances, and develop constructive 

approaches to the issues of homelessness and poverty.   

26. Upon information and belief, the City did not respond to the letter.   

27. Instead, the City has persisted in enforcing the ordinances and continues to cite 

and arrest people for asking for donations.   

28. Since mid-2018 to the present date, over 150 people—all of whom were soliciting 

for donations—were either cited with a notice to appear in court or arrested and taken to jail for a 

violation of §§ 122.27, 122.31, or 122.54 of the City Code.  One hundred and forty-two people 

(142) were cited for a violation of § 122.54, eight (8) for a violation of § 122.27, and six (6) for a 

violation of § 122.31.     

29. In 2022, based on the latest point-in-time-count data compiled by Broward 

County, there were 2,054 people experiencing homelessness in Broward County.  
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Plaintiff Dean Lutrario 

30. Plaintiff Dean Lutrario is sixty-two years old.  Mr. Lutrario suffers from a 

medical disability and is currently without permanent housing.   

31. Because he receives limited financial assistance, Mr. Lutrario must peacefully 

request donations from others to contribute to his survival. 

32. To help support himself, Plaintiff engages in peaceful panhandling in the City of 

Hollywood and requests donations from occupants of cars.  He stands on either the sidewalk 

adjacent to the street, or on a median, or on the edge/shoulder of a city street and verbally 

requests a donation while holding a sign that requests assistance.  If a motorist or an occupant of 

a stopped car signals to Mr. Lutrario that they want to give him a donation, he walks to the car 

and accepts it, and then quickly returns to the shoulder, sidewalk, or median and resumes holding 

his sign.    He does not obstruct or interfere with vehicular traffic.   

33. Mr. Lutario is indigent and does not have a permit to panhandle nor does he carry 

an identification card issued by the Hollywood Director of Licensing.      

34. Mr. Lutrario has been repeatedly harassed by the Hollywood police while 

panhandling.  The police typically drive up to where he is panhandling and warn him that if he 

doesn’t stop and leave the area, they will arrest him and take him to jail.   

35. Mr. Lutrario has been formally charged with violations of Hollywood solicitation 

ordinances on four occasions over the past thirty months.   

36. On September 28, 2020, Plaintiff was cited by the HPD with a violation of § 

122.54.  The police issued him a Notice to Appear (NTA) which charged that Plaintiff was acting 

as a “right-of-way-solicitor” at the intersection of two of the prohibited roadways, Sheridan 

Street and Federal Highway.  The NTA alleged that Plaintiff was panhandling and holding a sign 
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which stated, “Food and Water.  Please Help.  Anything Helps.”  Because he was homeless and 

did not have a reliable address, Mr. Lutrario did not receive notice of the date of his court 

appearance and when he failed to appear for his arraignment, a warrant was issued for his arrest.  

On February 16, 2022, Plaintiff was arrested on the warrant and taken to jail.  At his first 

appearance hearing while he was in custody, he pled guilty and received a sentence of credit for 

time served in the county jail.    

37. On July 11, 2022, Plaintiff was again cited by the HPD with a violation of § 

122.54.  The police issued him an NTA which charged that Plaintiff was acting as a “right-of-

way-solicitor” on Sheridan and Federal Highway.  The NTA alleged that Plaintiff was “seeking a 

donation” from people in cars at and holding a sign which stated, “Please help food!”  On 

October 6, 2022, the City filed a Nolle Prosequi, and the charges were dismissed.   

38.  On January 8, 2023, Plaintiff was issued a citation by the HPD for a violation of 

§ 122.31(F).  The NTA alleged that Plaintiff was “soliciting for money holding a sign for 

donations at the above intersection [Sheridan Street and Federal Highway] where signs are 

posted.”  On April 18, 2023, the City filed a Nolle Prosequi, and the charges were dismissed. 

39. On January 22, 2023, Plaintiff was charged again with a violation of § 122.31(F) 

by the same HPD officer who had cited him two weeks earlier.  The officer issued him an NTA 

which alleged that Plaintiff was “holding a sign at the above location [Sheridan Street and 

Federal Highway] attempting to solicit drivers/persons for money.”  On April 18, 2023, the City 

filed a Nolle Prosequi, and the charges were dismissed. 

40. Mr. Lutrario wants to panhandle more in the City of Hollywood but does not 

because he is afraid of being cited and arrested.  Because he has been deterred from panhandling 

more, he has not been able to obtain the amount of donations that he otherwise would receive 
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and is constantly struggling to survive.  He has also suffered mental and emotional distress from 

the constant threat and fear of arrest. 

41. The ongoing threat of citation and arrest has had a chilling effect on Mr. 

Lutrario’s exercise of his First Amendment rights in the City of Hollywood. Consequently, 

Plaintiff has suffered and continues to suffer damages and harm for the violation of his 

constitutional rights under the First Amendment. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

COUNT I - FIRST AMENDMENT - FREEDOM OF SPEECH 
(Permit Requirement / Section 122.27 of the Hollywood City Code) 

 
42. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 41 as if 

set forth herein. 

43. At all times relevant hereto, the Hollywood City Commission was the final 

policymaker for the City of Hollywood for the purpose of adopting ordinances regulating 

constitutionally protected speech and expressive conduct within the boundaries of the city.   

44. Requests for donations are recognized as speech entitled to First Amendment 

protection. 

45. The City’s streets and sidewalks are traditional public fora that hold a special 

position in terms of First Amendment protection because of their historic role as places of public 

expression. 

46. Section 122.27 of the Hollywood City Code is a content-based restriction on 

speech, as it singles out one subject area of speech—soliciting donations—for different treatment 

than speech on other subject matters. 
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47. As a content-based regulation, § 122.27 is subject to strict scrutiny, requiring the 

City to show that this regulation is narrowly tailored to serve a compelling government interest 

and is the least restrictive means of serving that interest, to establish its constitutionality.   

48. Section 122.27 is not narrowly tailored to, and is not the least restrictive means of 

serving, any compelling government interest, and is therefore unconstitutional under the First 

Amendment.     

49. Should § 122.27, or any part thereof, be construed as content-neutral rather than 

content-based, this regulation is nonetheless unconstitutional because it is not a reasonable time, 

place, and manner restriction, in that it is not narrowly tailored to serve a significant 

governmental interest, and it does not leave open ample alternative channels of communication. 

50. As a direct and proximate result of the City’s adoption and ongoing enforcement 

of § 122.27, Plaintiff has suffered and will suffer irreparable harm and damages, which will 

continue absent relief.   

COUNT II - FIRST AMENDMENT - FREEDOM OF SPEECH 
(Solicitation Regulations / Section 122.31 of the Hollywood City Code) 

 
51. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 41 as 

if set forth herein. 

52. At all times relevant hereto, the Hollywood City Commission was the final 

policymaker for the City Hollywood for the purpose of adopting ordinances regulating 

constitutionally protected speech and expressive conduct within the boundaries of the City. 

53. Requests for donations are recognized as speech entitled to First Amendment 

protection. 
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54. The City’s streets and sidewalks are traditional public fora that hold a special 

position in terms of First Amendment protection because of their historic role as places of public 

expression. 

55. Section 122.31 of the Hollywood City Code is a content-based restriction on 

speech, as it singles out one subject area of speech—soliciting donations—for different treatment 

than speech on other subject matters. 

56. As a content-based regulation, § 122.31 is subject to strict scrutiny, requiring the 

City to show that this regulation is narrowly tailored to serve a compelling government interest, 

and is the least restrictive means of serving that interest, to establish its constitutionality.  

57. Section 122.31 is unconstitutional because it is a content-based restriction on 

speech that is not narrowly tailored to serve compelling state interests, nor is it the least 

restrictive means of serving any compelling government interest.  

58. Should Section 122.31, or any part thereof, be construed as content-neutral rather 

than content-based, this regulation is nonetheless unconstitutional because it is not a reasonable 

time, place, and manner restriction, in that it is not narrowly tailored to serve a significant 

governmental interest, and it does not leave open ample alternative channels of communication. 

59. As a direct and proximate result of the City’s adoption and ongoing enforcement 

of § 122.31, Plaintiff has suffered and will suffer irreparable harm and damages, which will 

continue absent relief.   

COUNT III - FIRST AMENDMENT - FREEDOM OF SPEECH 
(Prohibition of Right-of-Way Soliciting / Section 122.54 of the Hollywood City Code) 

 
60. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 41 as 

if set forth herein. 
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61. At all times relevant hereto, the Hollywood City Commission was the final 

policymaker for the City Hollywood for the purpose of adopting ordinances regulating 

constitutionally protected speech and expressive conduct within the boundaries of the City. 

62. Requests for donations are recognized as speech entitled to First Amendment 

protection. 

63. The City’s streets and sidewalks are traditional public fora that hold a special 

position in terms of First Amendment protection because of their historic role as places of public 

expression. 

64. Section 122.54 of the Hollywood City Code is a content-based restriction on 

speech, as it singles out one subject area of speech—soliciting donations—for different treatment 

than speech on other subject matters. 

65. As a content-based regulation, § 122.54 is subject to strict scrutiny, requiring the 

City to show that this regulation is narrowly tailored to serve a compelling government interest, 

and is the least restrictive means of serving that interest, to establish its constitutionality.  

66. Section 122.54 is unconstitutional because it is a content-based restriction on 

speech that is not narrowly tailored to serve compelling state interests, nor is it the least 

restrictive means of serving any compelling government interest.  

67. Should § 122.54, or any part thereof, be construed as content-neutral rather than 

content-based, this regulation is nonetheless unconstitutional because it is not a reasonable time, 

place, and manner restriction, in that it is not narrowly tailored to serve a significant 

governmental interest, and it does not leave open ample alternative channels of communication. 
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68. As a direct and proximate result of the City’s adoption and ongoing enforcement 

of § 122.54, Plaintiff has suffered and will suffer irreparable harm and damages, which will 

continue absent relief.   

REQUEST FOR RELIEF - ALL COUNTS 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests and seeks the following relief:   

 A. A declaration that Sections 122.27, 122.31, and 122.54 of the City Code violate 

the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, facially and as applied to Plaintiff. 

B. A preliminary and permanent injunction prohibiting the City from enforcing 

Sections 122.27, 122.31, and 122.54 of the City Code. 

 C. All damages permitted by law, including but not limited to compensatory and 

nominal damages. 

 D. Attorneys’ fees and costs; and 

 E. Any other relief that is just and proper. 

Jury Demand 

Plaintiff demands trial by jury on all counts alleged above. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Dante P. Trevisani 
Florida Bar No. 72912 
E-mail: DTrevisani@FloridaJusticeInstitute.org 
Ray Taseff 
Florida Bar No. 352500 
E-mail: RTaseff@FloridaJusticeInstitute.org 
Florida Justice Institute, Inc. 
P.O. Box 370747  
Miami, Florida 33137 
305-358-2081 

       305-358-0910 (Fax) 
                
       By:  s/Ray Taseff      
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              Ray Taseff 
                  
       Mara Shlackman 
       Florida Bar No. 988618 
       Email:  mara@shlackmanlaw.com 
       Law Offices of Mara Shlackman, P.L 
       757 SE 17th Street; PMB 309 
       Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316 
       954-523-1131 
       954-206-0593 
        
       Attorneys for the Plaintiff 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
 SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 
 Fort Lauderdale Division 
 
 
DEAN LUTRARIO,     ) 
       ) 
     Plaintiff,      ) 
       ) 
vs.       ) Case No.  
       ) 
CITY OF HOLLYWOOD,               ) 
FLORIDA, a Florida municipal   ) 
corporation,       ) 
       ) 
         Defendant.     ) 
____________________________________ ) 
 
 
 DECLARATION OF DEAN LUTRARIO 
 
 I, Dean Lutrario, make this Declaration Under Penalty of Perjury, and declare that the 
statements below are true, and state: 
 
 My name is Dean Lutrario. I have reviewed the Verified Complaint above, and state that 
the facts which pertain to me are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.  
 
 I understand that a false statement in this declaration will subject me to penalties for 
perjury.  
 
 I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 
/s/ Dean Lutrario     Date: April 25, 2023 
Dean Lutrario 
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Litigation  
– Direct 
File

☐ 9 Remanded from
Appellate Court

☐ 1 Original
Proceeding

☐ 2 Removed 
from State
Court 

☐ 3 Re-filed
(See VI
below) 

☐ 4 Reinstated 
or
Reopened 

☐ 5 ☐ 7 Appeal to 
District Judge
from Magistrate 
Judgment 

☐

VI. RELATED/
RE-FILED CASE(S)

(See instructions):  a) Re-filed Case    ☐YES   ☐ NO    b) Related Cases   ☐YES   ☐ NO 
    JUDGE:       DOCKET NUMBER: 

VII. CAUSE OF ACTION
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing and Write a Brief Statement of Cause  (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity): 

LENGTH OF TRIAL via   days estimated (for both sides to try entire case) 
VIII. REQUESTED IN

COMPLAINT:
CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION 
UNDER F.R.C.P. 23 DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: 

JURY DEMAND:  ☐ Yes ☐ No 
ABOVE INFORMATION IS TRUE & CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE 
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY : RECEIPT #      AMOUNT        IFP       JUDGE        MAG JUDGE 
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JS 44   (Rev. 04/21)  FLSD Revised 12/02/2022  

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44 

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet 

 The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required 
by law, except as provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the 
use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil 
complaint filed.  The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows: 

I. (a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.  Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant.  If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations.  If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, 
giving both name and title.

(b) County of Residence.  For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing.  In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing.  (NOTE: In land condemnation 
cases, the county of residence of the “defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.) 

(c) Attorneys.  Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record.  If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section “(see attachment)”. 

II. Jurisdiction.  The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.C.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings.  Place an “X” in
one of the boxes.  If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff.  (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348.  Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant.  (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an “X” in this box.
Federal question.  (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the
Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States.  In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and
box 1 or 2 should be marked. Diversity of citizenship.  (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states.  When Box 4
is checked, the citizenship of the different parties must be checked.  (See Section III below; federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)
 

III. Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.  This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.  Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV. Nature of Suit.  Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of
suit code that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V. Origin.  Place an “X” in one of the seven boxes.

Original Proceedings.  (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.

Removed from State Court.  (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.  When the petition 
for removal is granted, check this box. 

Refiled (3) Attach copy of Order for Dismissal of Previous case. Also complete VI. 

Reinstated or Reopened.  (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court.  Use the reopening date as the filing date. 

Transferred from Another District.  (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a).  Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict 
litigation transfers. 

Multidistrict Litigation.  (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.  When this 
box is checked, do not check (5) above. 

Appeal to District Judge from Magistrate Judgment.  (7) Check this box for an appeal from a magistrate judge’s decision. 

Remanded from Appellate Court. (8) Check this box if remanded from Appellate Court.   

VI. Related/Refiled Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases or re-filed cases. Insert the docket numbers and the
corresponding judges name for such cases.

VII. Cause of Action.  Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause.  Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553

    Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service 

VIII. Requested in Complaint.  Class Action.  Place an “X” in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand.  In this space enter the dollar amount (in thousands of dollars) being demanded or indicate other demand such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand.  Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

Date and Attorney Signature.  Date and sign the civil cover sheet. 
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12)  Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff(s)

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12)  Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

’ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

’ I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

’ I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

’ I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

’ Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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	Plaintiffs: Dean Lutrario
	Defendants: City of Hollywood, Florida
	Count of Resident of First Listed Plaintiff: Broward
	Count of Resident of Last Listed Defendant: Broward
	Firm Name: Ray Taseff, Florida Justice Institute, PO Box 370747, Miami, FL. 33137, 786-342-6919 ; rtaseff@floridajusticeinstitute.org
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	Docket Number: 
	Cause of Action: 42 USC Sec. 1983 alleging violations of the First Amendment to US Consitution
	Length of Trial: 
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	Dist: 
	Info: [        Southern District of Florida]

	Plaintiff1: Dean Lutrario
	Civil action number: 
	Defendant1: City of Hollywood, Florida, a Florida municiipal corporation, 
	Defendant address:   City of Hollywood, Florida
  2600 Hollywood Boulevard
  Hollywood, Florida  33020-4807
	Plaintiff address: Ray Taseff
Florida Justice Institute 
PO Box 370747
Miami, Florida 33137
786-342-6919
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